RECEIVED FOR RECORD
gk 1392022 N9:544
Jo@inn DBoule

TOWW CLERK
CROMWELLy CF

Town of Cromwell
Planning and Zoning Commission

REGULAR MEETING
7:00 PM. TUESDAY OCTOBER 18, 2022
COUNCIL CHAMBERS CROMWELL TOWN HALL 41 WEST
STREET

AGENDA

Call to Order

Roll Call

Seating of Alternates

Approval of Agenda

Public Comments

Development Compliance Officer Report:

Director of Planning and Development Report:

New Business: Accept and Schedule New Applications:

New Business:

a. Application #22-25: Request for Site Plan Modification to construct additional parking at
52 Missionary Road. Covenant Living of Cromwell, Inc. is the Applicant and the Owner.

b. Application #22-31: Request for Site Plan Modification to install charging stations at
150 Country Squire Drive. Cromwell Village Associates, LLC is the Applicant and
Owner.

¢. Presentation on the Update of the Plan of Conservation and Development and the Zoning
Regulations.

10, Commissioner's Comments:

11. Approval of Minutes:

a. September 27, 2022
12. Adjourn:

LN R UNE



poaosddy] zz0zZ/1Z/9 sy 4oy uoneayipow ueyd aysjuuey sswer uieyded g angea ST |lemwoD)  v1-2¢
pasouddy] zzoz/el/L suolels Suidieyd a3 mojje 01 1xall  iuswpuawy Suwuoz Jiaag Se POINY  £T-22
panolddy zzoz/L/9 45 000°T uey) sa1eaud s8ereg] 193115 UIBRI 79S-095 Jloteq uoseys g Ayyown | z1-€¢
£Z/S uo uana-pasolddy uiwpy (moys Jed) nwiag Juang Adesodway 193415 UIBIN 6T poosug Asupoy] TI-ZT
panosddy TToe/S/v Jied MOUS -UOIIBDYIPOIN Ue|d 2US peoy s3]0 19T SHIOM NN [|I3MWOID Jo umol]  0T-2¢
parosddy zzoz/s/s den auoz syl o1 a8uey) oy ddy peoy ||tH uensuydj m .mw:__u_o_._ puei uieg 09€N|  60-2C
HST g peoy ull4eg 00T
panoaddy]  zz0Z/61/v (uopueq ayl) ‘Asq uopueq ayj - peoy 591210055y a8e||IA (|]amwoad)  80-7T
|enuapisay Ajlwg-11 Ny pauUE|d - UOIIEDUIPOIAl UB|d 9315 aJinbs Allunod 05T
pancuddy]  zzoz/61/v 21015 U0O1BUlNg MAN -UOIIEIYIPOIA UB|4 21521015 uoIBuIng- J93ua)) (UBjUIN gH ‘Iusplsaid 92IA) Aep Blead 'df  £0-22
Suiddoys bs |[amwiol)
panciddy 7eoe/s/s suolle|ngay Suiuoz puawy ol ddy v/N siqeuue) 8ujuoz pue Suluue|dl 90-77
umespyuml zeoz/ST/E suone|ngsy Sujuoz puawy o} ddy /N D11 9AY 159 9 1§ Uuy Aey/moulws maipuyl  S0-7Z
panoaddy]  zz0zZ/ST/E ped yse|ds pasodoud jooiqapy peoy 3|IASyIH 09 Jupyoougepy/uosuems yuarl  v0-zz
pasosddy|  zzoz/e1/v sjuswaacsdwil peoy ayidunys y¢ ysieydeq Aeof  €0-7¢
107 3unjied % SUOIIBAOUSY SpeJed UOIIBDLIPOIAl URld 9315
panouddy|  zzoz/S/t sSay Suluoz puswy 03 ddy v/N saimuap Aeg Ayuegl  70-zz
panoxddy|  zzoz/1/% 77/92/9-02/9 woiy uno) yodl  peoy qnd 409 suof usA3Inol vodl T10-7Z
Ze0z[xsix'zz0z Moday s,30mg Hzd\Surpes fuoday ywlad 2202 Z29d
5122yspes.ds\sININNI0A ADIANYI\BuIEILOI A AL\ -4
sn1eig| ajeq uoisdag ApAdY Jo adAy] uones’oy A uedddy Jo swen]  NwiRd|




panouddy]  zzoz/9/01 s3ay SuIuoz syl 03 JuLWpUsWY 10} ddy 1991S 1S9M\ T uoissiwwo) sutuoz pue Butuueld| 0g-zz
paaocuddy| zz0z/9/0T UOLEIIHPOIA UBld 911§ J0) ddyy peoy utjiag 19T 667 HEBWIEM) 6C-TC
paroaddyl  770zZ/9/0T 8upjq Aossadae aweldy 199115 VIRl £92 JT sAlowoINy ||9MwoLD)  8Z-Z¢
[2935 AJDIS-T JO UONINIISUC)-|eAoIddy ueld 9115 1o} ddy
pasouddy]  zzoz/9/01 1UISIq Aepaa] 192415 uIRN €97 211 ‘sanowoiny |[pmwolnd]  /Z-7Z
Eale piezeH poold |eads - yuwaag |eads Joj ddy
Suipuag Ausdoid o3 114 ppe - B3y |enads Joy ddy aueq JyaN peas g JIYaN sudlepSeN|  97-7T
3o0ug Jawwnsg zT
Suipuad s|[e1s peoy AeuoISSIIA 76 guia Jueudno)|  9Z-7t
9-f Sunjied |euoilppy - uonedipow uejd aus Jo) ddy
panoaddy]  2z0Z/9/0T SeLIaewt JO Buiysnad-Nwaad |eads Joy ddy 198115 1830 Y08 Alpay 24338 - uondnasuo) wnoweled|  HZ-ze
Suipuaq dn aALp/Mm Jueinelsal 199215 153/ S6T (meq Apowued) uiapy Aer 0/ 3717 uayany) emwoss|  gz-zz
pooJ 1se) e 1301350 0} pasododd-NuLiag |ernads Joy ddy
Suipuag |eaoaddy ue|d aus Joy ddy 189415 1S3M S61 {meq Apounsed) wiapy Aer 0/3 577 uaxayd [lamwold]  ZZ-7z
paaocaddy] zz0z/9/0T |enrouddy uejd @21s 1oy ddy peoy uipag g€ ZBUOWIS Malpuy )71 Ay Isam 9| TeT-Te
paaciddy z20z/e/6 1PUSIG ABIBAQ peoy uijag g SuaYINog Awy o/2 377 ‘saxmuanp Aeg Aiyueg|  0z-z2
ealy piezeH poold (eads-Nwaad [erxads 10y ddy
panoiddy 7202/9/6 |erouddy ue|d ays o3 ddy peoy uillag § suaYINOg AWy 0/ 377 ‘sainjuap Aeg Ainuegl  6Y-7C
panocuddy 7702/9/6 iajelay peoy uilag § suayonos Awy 0/3 71 ‘saunjuap Aeg Anuegl  81-2¢
sigeuue) 3SMN-HNPY YSiqelsa 01 Hwiad [e1nads 1oy ddy
paacsddy zeoz/a/e N3 tenads 1oy ddy DAL Yed 1aA1Y 9 ouljog [nedq uyory  L1-Te
pasosddy] zz0z/9/0T SIRUUED [1B19Y 10} N4 [edads Jo) ddy peoy uluag £§ ZIUOWIS MRIPUY DT PAY 1S9M 9] 9T-TZT
panosddy] zzoz/el/s IR |eidads 10 ddy 2AL(Q Y1999S 09T BZZIARY UIAY)  ST-¢C




Buipuad |eaoclddy uoisinpgns Joj ddy]  peoy uaauBian3 o/1 271 wawdojaaaqg |omsoy| s£-7T
72Z/62/6 |eaciddy uiwpy uoEedIHPOIA Ueld 23S 10} ddy]  asnoH uaalg Aeaqn [lemwol) Joumol | 9¢-z¢
Z2/1/0T leroiddy uiupy HUNJL O 1L - IWIRd uaag Aodwia) yed uayos uesng|  ge-zz

UOSI3ld - 199415 159

Suipuad 10131517 AepanQ peoY (IIH uensuyd D71 ‘s8ulp|oH pue uipag 09EN|  bE-TT

ealy piezeH pool{ |e1ads-jwlag |e1dads Joy ddy| YST 73 pecy ullieg 00T
Suipuad |eaosddy ue|d aus Joy ddy peoy [|IH UensuyD O ‘sBuip|oH pue uildag 09€IN|  £€-22
i Y41 R PeOY Uilled 00T

Suipuad ue|d Ja1sey pasotddy w peoy [|IH uensuyd 271 ‘s8uip|oH pue ullaag Q9sINf  TE-TT
SIUDWI[] |BUOISUIWIQ O SUOIEBIIPPOIA - HWiIa [e1dads) ST R PROY UI49g 00T

"Suipuad (uopuet ayl) - sie8ieYD U] - UONERIYIPO UB|d VS peoy sajepossy ase|A (l2mwold]  Te-zz
annbg AJjunod OsT




TOWN OF CROMWELL
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

APPLICATION FOR SITE PLAN MODIFICATION

Name of Project: /‘4//177[']7%4( ipg,fk("nﬁ /7’4 jfz’//j)

Street Address: [ JG "ﬂ@
Volume/Page: PIN #:

Applicant Name:

Address: 52 Misstunar. | (@)

émmu}o,“ - ]C/T- ﬂ(t"//é?

Telephone: S40-75Y =305\ (day) §060-422- §SO() (evening)
Email Address: ﬂ&/AH?L\ ﬁ) CoVIVing . gvg
471 (e =~

Property J
Owner Name: Méw%#%&wﬂ_
Address: K2 M (514 s ] vf{l

Attached:

( ) Application fee.

(v~ Twenty-five copies of the Site Development Plan prepared in accordance with
Article 13.3 of the Cromwell Zoning Regulations.

1. Is any part of the site within 500" of an adjoining town? (Yes)
2. Will this project require an Inland Wetlands Agency permit? (Yes)
if yes, have you obtained it? (Yes)
3. Wil this project require a DEP Stormwater Management Permit? (Yes)
if yes, have you applied for it? (Yes)
4. Wil this Project Require an STC Permit? (Yes)
if yes, have you submitted a copy of the plans to the STC? (Yes)
5. Does the parking comply with the handicapped parking (Yes)

requivements as sel forth in current version of the State Building Code?

I hereby certify that the information presented above is correct to the best of my knowledge.

-

P/ /4 §/9) 22

pplicant Name and Signaturg

rev. 1/6/11

N



Popper, Stuart

From: Harriman, Jon

Sent: Thursday, September 29, 2022 2:51 PM

To: Popper, Stuart

Subject: 22-25 52 Missionary Road - Site Pian Modification
Stuart,

| have looked a the plan to add five additional parking spaces along the north side roadway within 52 Missionary Road. |
would request that the design engineer submit something to show that there is adequate drainage system capacity to
account for the increase in impervious surface. | am requesting this information because we have received drainage
concerns from properties down stream from 52 Missionary over the last few years. Other than that I have no comments

on the proposed plan revision,

Jon Harriman, P.E.
Town Engineer

Town of Cromwell, CT
ph: 860 632-3465

Jx: 860 632-3477



MEMORANDUM

To: Stuart B. Popper, AICP, Director of Planning & Development

From: Bruce E. Driska, CZEO, Zoning & Wetlands Enforcement Officer BD

Date: September 20, 2022

Re: Plan Review, PZC Applications #22-25, 52 Missionary Road
COMMENTS

[ have reviewed the plan for an expansion of five (5) existing parking spaces and proposed
landscaping buffer and have the following comment:

e Applicant to submit a performance bond as determined by staff



Application ¢§§: =1

TOWN OF CROMWELL
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

APPLICATION FOR SITE PLAN MODIFICATION

Name of Project: Planned Multifamily Residential Development (The Landon of Cromwell)

Street Address: ;.-BOACOUNW Squire Drive
Volume/Page: 1486-142 pIN #: 00336000

Applicant Name:  Cromwell Village Associaties, LLC.

Kdfipase: 2319 Whitney Avenue, Suite 1A
Hamden, CT 06518
Telephone: (203)230-1600 (day) (evening)
Brudi Address: Markie_f@sbcglobal.net
Property ; ki
Owner Name: Cromwell Village Associaties, LLC.
Aidfsess: 2319 Whitney Avenue, Suite 1A
Hamden, CT 06518
Attached:
Application fee.

Twenty-five copies of the Site Development Plan prepared in accordance with
Article 13.3 of the Cromwell Zoning Regulations.

1. Is any part of the site within 500" of an adjoining town? O Yes No
2. Will this project require an [nland Wetlands Agency permit? Yes ONo
ifves, have you obtained it? Yes  [ONo
3. Will this project require a DEP Stormwater Management Permit? Yes [ONo
if ves, have you applied for it? Yes DONo
4. Will this Project Require an SIC Permit? Yes ONo
if ves, have you submitted a copy of the plans to the STC? Yes [ONo
5. Does the parking comply with the handicapped parking Yes [ONo

requirements as set forth in current version of the State Building Code?

I hereby certify that the information presented above is correct to the best of my knowledge.

A ’\{_/7__\ ‘- J
f:/’ - )/\ ';,{,_]); !

Applicant Name and Signature Date




MEMORANDUM

To: Stuart B. Popper, AICP, Director of Planning & Development

From: Bruce E. Driska, CZEQ, Zoning & Wetlands Enforcement Officer BD
Date: September 28, 2022

Re: Plan Review, PZC Site Plan Modification Application #22-31,

150 Country Squire Drive, The Landon

COMMENTS

[ have reviewed the plan for PZC Site Plan Application #22-31, 150 Country Squire Drive, The Landon
and have the following comments:
e Two of the six charging stations shown on the plan have already been installed



Fontaine, Candice

From: Harold Holmes <hholmes@cromwellfd.com>
Sent: Tuesday, October 04, 2022 3:24 PM

To: Fontaine, Candice

Subject: 22-31 150 COUNTRY SQUIRE DRIVE THE LANDON
Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

As submitted, | have no issues with adding a charging station as long as it won't interfere with the fire lanes which it
appears it won’t. Parking is very tight in this complex as it is.
If you have any questions, please feel free to reach out.

Stay Safe, Stay Healthy !

Harold Holmes NAFI- CEFI, IAAI-FIT
Fire Marshal

Cromwell Fire District

1 West Street Cromwell Ct 06457
hholmes@cromwellfd.com
860-635 3188 Office
860-306-6534 Cell

This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of
the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential or proprietary
information which is legally privileged. Any unauthorized review, use,
disclosure, or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended
recipient, please promptly contact the sender by reply e-mail and
destroy all copies of the original message.



Town of Cromwell
Planning and Zoning Commission

SPECIAL MEETING
7:00 PM, TUESDAY SEPTEMBER 27, 2022
COUNCIL CHAMBERS CROMWELL TOWN HALL 41 WEST STREET
Minutes and Record of Votes

Present: Chairman: Alice Kelly, Vice Chairman Michael Cannata, Ann Grasso, Chris
Cambareri, Paul Cordone, Brian Dufresne, John Keithan, Robert Donohue

Absent: Nick Demetriades, Ken Rozich

Also present: Director of Planning and Development Stuart Popper, Zoning Enforcement
Officer Bruce Driska

1. Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 7:05pm by Chairman Kelly. gecrivep FOR RECORD
Ok 122002 0344F

2. Roll Call b \/
CROMWELL, CT
The presence of the above members was noted.

3.  Seating of Alternates

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Brian Dufresene to seat Robert
Donohue as an alternate. All were in favor; the motion was passed.

4. Approval of Agenda

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Chris Cambareri to approve the
agenda. All were in favor; the motion was passed.

5.  Public Comments

Joe Koniushesky of 180 Evergreen Road, Cromwell said he and his wife live here. He said he
wanted to talk about a proposed subdivision at Willowbrook and Evergreen Roads. He handed
the Commissioners a map depicting the area. He said the development consists of 6 houses

which he thinks is too much but seems to be a done deal. He said he is concerned about water
going down Willowbrook especially since the culvert is not maintained. He said it has flooded



out his property in the past. He said he is not sure what this development will mean for potential
water issues. Mr. Koniushesky said he appreciated if the Town and The Commission would pay
attention to this situation since it is a very active body of water.

Chairman Kelly said this is not a done deal since it hasn’t come before the Commission yet so no
approval has been granted.

Mr. Popper said this project has gone before Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Agency
(IWWA) and was approved so it will come here.

Mr. Cannata told Mr. Koniushesky that he should make the Town Engineer aware of this. He
said Mr. Hatriman is great but he has to be cued into your concerns.

6. Development Compliance Officer Report:
Mr. Driska said that there was a briefing in the package and asked if anyone had any questions.

Chairman Kelly said that she was concerned about the development on Hicksville Road and
West Street. She said they have a big trailer in the road with no flag person there. She said it has
happened twice as far as she knows. Chairman Kelly said that is against the regulations. She
confirmed that it was some kind of delivery truck. She also asked about a house on Willowbrook
that has had some sort of dumpster there for months. Mr. Driska said it is two steel containers
and Chairman Kelly said it has been at least 6 months. Mr. Keithan said he has seen Service
Master trucks there. Mr. Driska said he would look into it.

M. Dufresne asked about the home on Coles Road that is across from the preschool. Mr. Driska
said that is 37 Coles Road and a nearby neighbor has purchased that property from the bank and
is slowly cleaning it up. He said many items have been removed from the exterior of the property
and they are slowly getting to the interior repairs. Mr. Cannata asked if the home can be saved
and Mr. Driska said he wasn’t sure and he does check in with them every 60-90 days or so to
monitor their progress.

7.  Director of Planning and Development Report:

M. Popper said there are two new restaurants coming. One is in the Subway on Main Street and
the plans show it will be a Mexican restaurant. The other is a taco shop where Ambrosia was
across the street. He said a protein shake shop is planned to go in the Crossroad Shopping
Center. He said they will make smoothies but also sell the ingredients. He said these restaurants
will likely use existing signage and they won’t submit applications to this Commission but [
wanted to make you aware of them.

Mr. Popper said that the Burlington store will open in November and Texas Roadhouse will be
submitting their plans soon as they want to be ready for demolition as soon as Ruby Tuesday’s
lease expires. He said construction is ongoing at Arbor Meadows and they are way ahead of
schedule. Mr. Popper also said that there will be a small medical office application submitted
before Christmas. He said there is a large parcel going through due diligence now and if it works



out will be a large unusual retail facility.

Mr. Popper said the old Friendly’s could be an auto parts store but he doesn’t know much about
it but a sign company contacted them regarding that property. He said the Geer Street project
will be voted on next Wednesday by IWWA. Mr. Popper said this Commission has a regular
meeting next Thursday, October 6th and we will have numerous applications at that meeting. He
said we can look at the Plan of Conservation and Development at the October 18th meeting.

M. Popper said the moratorium for accepting any new Cannabis Facility applications needs to

be extended by 60 days as we are waiting on the Town Council to meet and decide the number of
stores that will be allowed in town. Chairman Kelly asked if this could be done at the October

6th meeting since tonight is a special meeting. Mr. Popper said that would be fine.

M. Popper also said that there has been discussion about the senior center relocation project. He
said there has been discussion about moving the football field at Pierson Park to the high school.

Mr. Popper said they have hired SLR to update the zoning regulations and the Plan of
Conservation and Development. He said they will be incorporating any/all amendments since
2015 and the new state Statutes into the new format. He said they are moving along and
collecting data.

Mr. Popper said I have asked you about forming a subcommittee to work with them. He said I’ll
ask again and you can let me know next week.

Mr. Popper said the Carrier Company has acquired the property on Court Street and would like
to make another informal presentation about the modified court settlement formats and
footprints.

8. New Business: Accept and Schedule New Applications:

9. New Business:
a. Application #22-21: Request for a Site Plan Modification at 33 Berlin Road. 6 West Ave,
LLC is the Applicant and Mary Ann Marchio is the Owner.

Mr. Popper said that we will open the Public Hearing for application #22-16 and the applicant
will present the site plan modifications along with the special permit application.

10. Public Hearings:
a. Application #22-16: Request for a Special Permit under Section 6.11.B of the Zoning
Regulations to allow for the retail sales of Cannabis and Cannabis related products at 33
Berlin Road. 6 West Ave, LLC is the Applicant and Mary Ann Marchio is the Owner.

Michael Cannata recused himself from the meeting at 7:33pm.

Mr. Popper handed out the Adult Use Cannabis regulations.



Chairman Kelly reads the public hearing notice dated September 12, 2022,

A motion was made by Chris Cambareri and seconded by Ann Grasso to open the public hearing
for application #22-16. Chairman Kelly, Paul Cordone, Brian Dufresne, Robert Donohue, Chris
Cambareri, John Keithan, Ann Grasso approved; the motion was passed

Andrew Simonow, President of 6 West Ave, LLC in East Hampton, CT said he is considered an
expert on interior horticulture architecture and he has considerable experience running large
scale cannabis related facilities. He said the proposed site was home to Riverdale Cleaners. He
said it has been vacant and needs a new use and to be revitalized. He said they look to reuse
properties when it makes sense. He said one of his partners is Jerry Farrell, Jr. who served as the
Commissioner of Consumer Protection under the Rell administration,

Mr. Simonow said the site adequately meets the regulations including parking requirements
providing them the ability to manage the traffic and get people in and out quickly.

He said a busy hour would be about 50 customers with a total of 140-160 products sold in that
hour.

Mark Degnan, Project Manager at Feliner Architects, 382 Town Street, East Haddam, CT said he
has been tasked with looking at the existing building. He said we are striving to be cohesive with
the existing building and neighborhood. He showed the open layout and proposed floor plan and
how customer would move through the space Mr. Degnan said there is a clear delineation with
the customer interaction and the check out. He said the product is not handed to the customer
until the very end. He said we will use the existing door in the back for deliveries and the vault is
a very special construction. Mr. Degnan said we will not be changing the building at all and are
using the existing space only. He said the windows will not allow passersby to see what is going
on inside the building but only allow them to see movement and colors. He said there will be
wall mounted lighting on the building to supplement the parking lot lights. Mr. Degnan showed
the signage and Mr. Dufresne asked if the actual name is 372 Cannabis Dispensary. Mr. Degnan
said yes, that our direction is from Mr. Simonow and we have followed all regulations for signs.
Mr. Cambareri asked if this was within State regulations and Mr. Popper said yes.

Mr. Simonow said that we have submitted our application for an Equity Joint Venture with the
State but that hasn’t been approved yet. He said [ am open to changing the store name. Chairman
Kelly said we can also ask you to change it as well.

Mark Reynolds, Professional Engineer at Reynolds Engineering Services, LLC, 63 Norwich
Avenue, Colchester, CT said this site is a little over .5 acres on Route 372. He said to the rear is
the Mattabesett River. He said the proposed vehicular access to this site allows for adequate flow
and includes 24 parking spaces and a loading space. He said they plan to construct a sidewalk
from the rear parking lot to the front entrance so there is a separate pedestrian path from the
vehicle access. Mr. Reynolds said the storm water detention basin has adequate drainage to serve
this site. He said we will place a do not enter and one-way signs to make the traffic flow work
better. He said we will install landscaping including a row arborvitae by the walkway and



planting beds. He said we are not proposing to change the site ail that much.

Stephen Mitchell, Traffic Engineer at Mitchell Traffic Engineering, LLC at 7 East Forest Drive,
Enfield, CT said he will walk the Commission through the traffic report. He said that COVID has
made traffic difficult and they have used State traffic counters on Route 372 to get the numbers.
Mr. Mitchell said they have used three of the busiest hours to get the data. He said we usually
use similar uses for studies but since these facilities don’t exist in Connecticut we went into the
national database where they do have data for cannabis facilities. He said that the database
consists of seven studies right now. He said the database will become more accurate as time goes
on. He said our study on this site has produced scores of D or better but in many cases, they are
A’s and B’s. A means you are driving with little delay of about § seconds. A D score is what you
aim for in peak hours with a delay of 20-25 seconds. Mr. Mitchell said an F is a traffic jam
resulting in a delay of 45 seconds or more. Chairman Kelly said taking a left out of this site
would create a delay of more than 45 seconds and Mr. Mitchel said that site lines are not an issue
here.

Mr. Cambareri asked about comments from town staff and Mr. Popper said all of their comments
have been addressed. Mr. Mitchell said they have made changes based on the Police Chief’s
concerns.

Mr. Popper said he wanted someone to explain what your rights are to access the other
surrounding properties. He said there are a number of conditions with the legal rights and we
need to clarify the flow of traffic. He said I am concerned how access will work. He asked how
they demarcate the arrows on the map from Hammerhead Place and to have the Engineer think
about that. He also said we need to clarify where the light fixtures are and what they will look
like. He asked whether the applicant had the legal right to mill and stripe the parking lots.

Mr. Simonow showed the lighting in the plans. Chairman Kelly said we need to know about the
parking lot before the highting.

At 8:21pm Mr. Popper said we need to take a break to change the tape. Chairman Kelly called
the meeting back to order at 8:28.

Andrew Simonow said that their Attorney could explain the rights to the easement.

Attorney George Law, 595 Main Street, Portland, CT said the deed includes rear parking rights
and the use of the right of way in the existing parking lot. He said they have all rights to use the
driveway as we need to conduct business. Chairman Kelly asked if they can make improvements
and Attorney Law said yes, they have the right to use the parking lot for all purposes necessary
to conduct their business including maintaining and improving.

Chairman Kelly said this use is a big change to the cleaners' use where you would just drive up
and drop off your clothes. She said this is a different kind of enterprise. Attorney Law said
according to the deed this could be any business. Mr. Popper said according to the deed the
abutting property has the right to use the applicant’s lots. Attorney Law said yes that is correct
but they have adequate parking. Mr. Dufresne asked how they stop cars from parking in adjacent



lot and said your parking lot is really tight and in my opinion is a major issue presenting a hazard
to the health and safety of the residents using it. He said it’s not really wide enough for 2-way
traffic. Mr. Dufresne said I also have a problem with a sign in front of residences that says
cannabis.

Andrew Simonow showed the sign placement of the monument sign which is in the state right of
way. Mr. Dufresene said your sign isn’t on your property and Mr. Simonow said it is existing
and to remain as is. Mr. Simonow said we have more than enough parking to meet your
regulations. He said I have never seen more than one car in this space from the adjoining parking
lot. Mr. Dufresne said it just doesn’t flow. Mr. Simonow said that is your opinion but I have
professionals who have designed this.

Mr. Driska read the sign regulations and said the sign does need to reside within their property
line.

Mark Reynolds said he wanted to show the rear parking and said the parking spaces are all
standard sizes for parking lots and the aisle widths are also standard sizes as well. He said they
all meet sound Engineering standards and your town regulations. He said we will incorporate
stop bars, double yellow lines into the plans and we will refresh the current markings already
there.

Mr. Popper asked about lighting along the pedestrian path and Mr, Simonow said there will be
five wall packs along the back and two on the side and more along the building. He said there is
an existing pole in the back parking lot but they will update with LED bulbs.

Mr. Popper asked about the grade and with of the proposed sidewalks and Mr. Reynolds said
they are standard with a mild grade. Mr. Driska asked about the specs of the landscaping and Mr.
Reynolds that they plan on arborvitae and Mr. Driska said anything over knee height can
sometimes lead to encouraging unwanted behavior by offering a screen and Mr. Reynolds said
they are open to different species of plantings and are not stuck on that.

Mr, Reynolds said there are 2 handicap spots. Mr. Dufresne asked how they will prevent people
from parking in River Grace and Mr. Reynolds said there really isn’t a way but it really isn’t
needed. Ms. Grasso said the parking spaces in the back exceed the lot line and Mr. Reynolds said
we didn’t count those spaces in our plan or analysis. He said the 24 spaces that we are saying
meet your regulations are not in this area. Ms. Grasso asked about parking for the delivery truck
and Mr. Reynolds said there is an oversized space near the back steps. Ms. Grasso asked when
the deliveries were made. Mr. Simonow said they would typically receive two deliveries per day
per 4 cultivators. He said these deliveries would be staggered while we are open. Mr. Simonow
said the van is never left unattended with the driver always staying in the van. He explained the
door process from the delivery door to the vault door and said the inner door into the hallway
won’t open until the exterior door closes. He explained the day gate of the vault. Ms. Grasso
asked about the counter high wall that separates the retail side to the service side. She said
someone can jump that counter and grab the product easy enough. Mr. Dufresne said the other
presentation they have seen showed a much more secure facility. Ms, Grasso agreed that it
seemed much more secure. Ms. Grasso asked about the seating area shown on the plan and Mr.



Simonow said we are just trying to depict a professional atmosphere and this is just appealing to
the eye. He said this area would see limited use mostly with people who might be waiting for a
consultation.

Mr. Driska asked if Mr. Simonow could speak to the feature on the side of the building by the
vault. Mr. Simonow said the windows do have bullet proof film on them and give them a snowy
look so you can’t see in. He said we are leaving the windows in the vault for lock but they will
have bullet proof film on them.

Chairman Kelly asked about the delivery area and Mr. Simonow said it is the loading zone by the
backstairs and Mr. Reynolds said there is plenty of room back there for the vehicle to back in.
Mr. Dufresne said the delivery truck adds to the congestion in the main parking lot. Mr.
Simonow said it seems well designed to him and is a larger arca than regulations call for.
Chairman Kelly asked when those regulations for the size of the parking space were made. Mr.
Mitchell said the regulations haven’t changed since the 1950°s when cars were much longer and
wider. He also said that your regulations say we need 13 spaces and we have 24 so almost twice
as many. Mr. Mitchell said he doesn’t think that is really a congested area.

Mr. Popper asked about the hours of operation and the number of employees. Mr. Simonow said
the hours can be up to you but I was thinking 8:00am - 8:00pm Monday through Sunday. He said
that Sunday reduces the number of people that come on Friday evening and Saturday, We open
on Sundays on purpose. He said the memo the Commission received from them shows 40
employees but that was a typo and should have been 20 employees in total. He said there would
typically be 8 employees on site at one time. Mr. Simonow said that they offer incentives to
employees to carpool, so we typically have 4 employee cars at once.

Chairman Kelly asked about the number of customers per hour they expect. Mr. Simonow said
up to 50 an hour. Mr. Popper said that seems high and kind of terrifying. He said the site and
parking don’t work for those numbers. He asked Mr. Simonow if he was being realistic. Mr.
Simonow said that he would rather overstate to be on the safe side. He said he has worked at
Willowbrook dispensary in Meriden and they had 37 people on the busiest hour on a Saturday
selling 3-4 items per customer. Mr. Simonow said he wanted to over plan. He said the typical
customer is inside for about 3 minutes and 90% of orders are made online with only about 5%
walk-in customers. Chairman Kelly said in your application you state the hours as 9:00am -
10:00pm. Mr. Simonow said the change was so they could try and be respectful to the residential
neighbors.

Mr. Cambareri asked about the canopy signage and Mr. Simonow said the awning will be
removed with a much smaller backlit structure. Chairman Kelly said I would prefer it if you take
the backlighting out of the sign and the word cannabis out of the name. Mr. Simonow asked if he
could have the lighting if he took out the word cannabis. Mr. Popper said our regulations do
allow for signage and Mr. Driska said they will have to remove the monument sign and Mr.
Simonow asked Mr. Driska to clarify that and Mr. Driska said you would have to move the
monument sign on to your property.

Attorney George Law said the existing sign probably predates the zoning regulations and



probably doesn’t have to move. Mr. Simonow said he is ok with it not being there; he just
thought it would be helpful for people to be able to see the sign driving from etther direction.

Mr. Dufresne said he thought the intent of the regulations was to not have a store in sight of a
residential area. Mr. Popper said we can go over that when we discuss the application prior to a
vote which won’t be tonight. Mr. Simonow said he was hoping for a vote tonight as he has been
working with the Mr. Popper and the town for 6-8 months now, There was a discussion
regarding the moratorium on cannabis applications and Chairman Kelly said the moratorium
doesn’t apply to this application since it was accepted before the moratorium. Mr. Dufresne
asked what would happen if this Commission approves two applications and the Town Council
only says one. Mr. Popper said they can’t. He said they know there is one approved and one
pending. The minimum has to be at least 2. He said to keep in mind the State also stated we can
have one retail, one hybrid, and one medical.

Mr. Cambareri asked if the applicants handled the proper notifications to neighbors, put the
public hearing sign up and did they meet the regulations. Mr. Popper said yes, and yes and since
this is a special permit the Commission can dictate conditions. Mr. Donohue asked if cannabis
taws follow liquor laws like dictating what hours they are allowed to be open. Mr. Popper said
no. Mr. Donohue asked if Harold Holmes was shown the site plan and Mr. Popper said yes and
he had no comment.

Chairman Kelly asked for the applicant to clarity the parking area. She asked if Cafe Luna and
Joe’s Filling station can both use the back parking of their property. Mr. Simonow said yes. Mr.
Popper said the dry cleaner didn’t need the space so he granted it to Franco’s and you never see
anyone parking over there. He also said from our perspective this use needs the parking spaces
and the easement still exists. He said T can’t imagine any use that could go in there that would
generate any bigger use, He said this business is more akin to a package store and it is up to each
Commission member to feel comfortable if it works.

Mr. Simonow said he wanted to make it understood that only a certain area is shared and about
10 parking spaces in the back are not shared. He said he is willing to be a good neighbor and
update the parking area and pave sections of the lots.

Mr. Driska asked about an enclosed dumpster since there are several dumpsters back there in
addition to his. Mr. Simonow said if they allow him to, he would like to put a pad out there and
put them all on it. Mr. Popper said his attorney should address your ability to make
improvements to their parking area. He said if the Commission voted yes, he would make a
recommendation that a condition of approval be putting in arrows and directional signage. He
asked if they had the legal right to do that. Attorney Law said the language clearly allows for
them to make changes together with the grantee and reminded them that the parking in back is
owned by the applicants and they are the only ones with the rights in that area.

The meeting was paused while the tape was changed at 9:47pm. The meeting was called back to
order at 9:50pm.

Mr. Popper said we need to see a set of plans with lighting and traffic signage. He said the police



chief should also see the revised plans as well. He said my suggestion is to continue the public
hearing. He said he encouraged the applicant's Engineer to come and meet with the staff before
next week. Mr. Simonow said they would be able to come to an agreement on these matters
tonight and Mr. Popper said it’s more than putting arrows on the ground. Mr. Simonow said he
felt they met the spirit of the regulations. Mr. Popper said in your mind you did, but you missed a
lot. Chairman Kelly said we don’t want to rush to judgment and they want to be fair to a new
business use in the State of Connecticut. She said it is a lot to digest.

A motion was made by Brian Dufresne and seconded by Paul Cordone to continue the public-
hearing for application #22-16 until October 6th. Chairman Kelly, Paul Cordone, Brian
Dufresne, Robert Donohue, Chris Cambareri, John Keithan, Ann Grasso approved; the motion

was passed.

11. Plan of Conservation and Development Update Report
12. Commissioner's Comments:
13. Approval of Minutes:

a. September 6, 2022

Mr. Popper said they would table the minutes until the next meeting.

14. Adjourn:

A motion was made by Brian Dufresne and seconded by Paul Cordone to adjourn at 9:56pm.
Chairman Kelly, Paul Cordone, Brian Dufresne, Robert Donohue, Chris Cambareri, John
Keithan, Ann Grasso approved; the motion was passed.

Respectfully submitted,

ANV S

Linda Imme
Recording Clerk



